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CORPORATE INFORMATION
Nl L
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE S

| present the results and operations of Zhuguang Holdings Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

RESULTS

The audited consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009 was approximately HK$7,262,000 and the basic
earnings per share was HK0.39 cents, as compared to the consolidated
loss of approximately HK$23,996,000 and basic loss per share of
HK1.47 cents for 2008.

NET ASSET VALUE

The consolidated net asset value per share of the Group as at
31 December 2009 was approximately HK$0.23 based on
2,268,820,000 shares in issue, as compared to HK$0.28 per share for
2008.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property Investment

The Group’s major property investment is certain floors in Royal
Mediterranean Hotel, with a total gross floor area of approximately 6,098
square meters, which is located at Tianhe Road, Tianhe District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). Such investment has generated a recurring gross rental income
of approximately HK$680,000 per month.

Another property investment of the Group is the twelve shop units at
Jiang Bian Road, Meizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, with a
total gross floor area of approximately 2,384 square meters and the
levels 1 to 9 of the accessional building, the tricorn region besides the
River View Hotel at Jiang Bian Road, Meizhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC, with a total gross floor area of approximately 12,898
square meters. As announced on 31 December 2009, the Group has
disposed of Brilliant Champion Development Limited (“Brilliant
Champion”), the holding company of the said properties which has no
other business except the holding of the said properties.

Property Development

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s core property development
project is located at Nansha District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
the PRC which is preliminarily named “Zhuguang Nansha Yujing”
(“Nansha Yujing”). As announced on 16 November 2009, the Group
won an auction to acquire the property development project located at
Jinzhou Main Street, Nansha District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
the PRC, including the land with a site area of approximately 34,904
square meters, two buildings where the construction has been
suspended and four buildings which have been partly sold. The Group
intends to complete the development of the semi-finished property and
further develop it into a residential and commercial community, which
will comprise ten 18-storey towers including residential units, a single-
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

storey commercial podium and a car park at basement level with an
expected total gross floor area of approximately 109,066 square meters.
The development of Nansha Yujing commenced in the fourth quarter
of 2009. It is estimated by the Group that the pre-sale will commence
by mid 2010 and the development will be completed by the fourth
quarter of 2011.

Another property development project of the Group is Holiday Bay
Chaohu Phase I, which is located at Zhongmiao Town, Chaohu City,
Anhui Province, the PRC. As announced on 29 December 2009, the
Group has disposed of Boshing Investments Limited (“Boshing
Investments”), the holding company of the said development project
which has no other business except the holding of the said development
project.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

In 2009, under the central government’s proactive fiscal policies and
moderately loose monetary policies, and coupled with the
implementation of a basket of stimulus measures, the economic
downturn in the PRC was effectively staved off. The PRC still achieved
strong annual GDP growth rate of 8.7% in 2009. The economy of Hong
Kong has also improved in 2009.

During the year, the PRC property market has evidently improved.
Although some recent policies and measures have already affected the
property market in the short term, the Group is still optimistic about the
long-term development of the PRC property market. The property
industry has become a pillar industry in the PRC and is critical to the
economic development of the country. Moreover, rapid ongoing
urbanization will likely to continue to drive up the property market for
some time. In the coming year, the Group will follow the market
conditions closely so as to master changes in the market and capture
investment opportunities including acquisition of prime land parcels.
The Group will continue to expand the Group’s business.

On top of the existing development projects and property investments
held by the Group, the Group has exerted great efforts in enhancing
and expanding its property investment and development business.
Based on the Group’s extensive experience in the property market in
the PRC, the Group will continue to explore quality properties with a
view to expanding its land bank should suitable opportunities arise.

Furthermore, the Group will also strive to expedite the development of
its business and will consider expanding its development scale through
joint venture cooperation and mergers and acquisitions.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our shareholders for their
continued support to the Group and the dedicated management and
staff for their valuable contributions during the year.

Liao Tengjia
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 April 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CORPORATE CHANGES

On 2 July 2009, Rong De Investments Limited (“Rong De”) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with two substantial shareholders of
the Company pursuant to which Rong De conditionally agreed to acquire
from the said shareholders an aggregate of 665,280,000 shares of the
Company for a consideration of HK$66,528,000. At the same time,
the Company and Rong De entered into a subscription agreement
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue
to Rong De 636,820,000 new shares at a subscription price of HK$0.1
per share. As announced on 4 September 2009, all the conditions
precedent of the sale and purchase agreement and the subscription
agreement had been fulfilled and completion took place on 4 September
2009. The proceeds from the share subscription were used as general
working capital of the Group and to fund the Group’s future investment
and business opportunities. Furthermore, in order to enable the
allotment and issue of the subscription shares and to facilitate future
issue of shares, the Company had increased its authorized share capital
from 2,000,000,000 shares to 4,000,000,000 shares.

As announced on 24 November 2009, subsequent to the approval by
a special resolution pass in a special general meeting of the Company
in relation to the proposed change of company name, and after the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda issued the Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name and the Registrar of Companies in
Hong Kong issued the Certificate of Registration of Change of Corporate
Name, the English name of the Company has been changed from “Nam
Fong International Holdings Limited” to “Zhuguang Holdings Group
Company Limited”. Accordingly, the Company has adopted the new
Chinese name “Tf 3t 12 i% & [& /A [R 2 )" for identification purposes only.
Moreover, the stock short names for trading in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited has been
changed to “ZHUGUANG HOLD”.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in property development, property
investment and property rental activities in the PRC.

During the year, the Group carried out a detailed review on the existing
business of the Group for the purpose of formulating business plans
and strategies for the future business development of the Group.

In 2009, the Group’s major investment property remained the certain
floors in Royal Mediterranean Hotel, and its primary property
development was Nansha Yujing development project. During the year
under review, the Group has disposed of its entire interest in Boshing
Investments and the debts due by Boshing Investments to the Group,
and its entire interest in Brilliant Champion and the debts due by Birilliant
Champion to the Group.
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In November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent vendor to acquire of 100% shareholding interest in
Guangzhou City Runfa Property Company Limited (“GZ Runfa”).
Subsequent to the acquisition, GZ Runfa has successful bid for the
property development project located at Jinzhou Main Street, Nansha
District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC, including the land
with a site area of approximately 34,904 square meters, two buildings
where the construction has been suspended and four buildings which
have been partly sold. The Group intends to complete the development
of the semi-finished property and further develop it into a residential
and commercial community. The Project is preliminarily named
“Zhuguang Nansha Yujing” (“Nansha Yujing”). According to the
construction design, the Project will comprise ten 18-storey towers
including residential units, a single-storey commercial podium and a
car park at basement level with an expected total gross floor area of
approximately 109,066 square meters. The development of Nansha
Yujing commenced in the fourth quarter of 2009. It is estimated by the
Group that the pre-sale will commence by mid 2010 and the
development will be completed by the fourth quarter of 2011.

In December 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent purchaser to dispose of the entire interest in Boshing
Investments and the debts due by Boshing Investments to the Group
at a total consideration of HK$80,000,000. Boshing Investments
together with its wholly owned subsidiary, Chaohu Boshing Tourism
Development Company Limited (“Chaohu Boshing”) whose only asset
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

was the development project, namely Holiday Bay Chaohu Phase |,
which is located at Zhongmiao Town, Chaohu City, Anhui Province, the
PRC. Such disposal was completed in December 2009.

In December 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent purchaser to dispose of the entire interest in Brilliant
Champion and the debts due by Brilliant Champion to the Group at a
total consideration of HK$60,000,000. Brilliant Champion together with
its wholly owned subsidiary, Meizhou City Hoi Du Enterprises Limited
(“MZ Hoi Du”) whose only asset was the investment property, being
the twelve shop units at Jiang Bian Road, Meizhou City with a total
gross floor area of approximately 2,384 square meters and the levels 1
to 9 of the accessional building, the tricorn region besides the River
View Hotel at Jiang Bian Road, Meizhou City with a total gross floor
area of approximately 12,898 square meters. Such disposal was
completed in December 2009.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In the coming year, in addition to retaining its certain floors in Royal
Mediterranean Hotel, the Board also intends to acquire the entire block
of the hotel. As announced on 22 January 2010, the Group entered
into two memoranda of understanding with two prospective vendors
respectively in respect of the acquisition of the entire block of the Royal
Mediterranean Hotel, pursuant to which it is preliminarily estimated that
the aggregate consideration shall not be more than RMB1.7 billion,
which shall be subject to further negotiation between the parties. It is
expected that the consideration will be satisfied by the Company by
means of cash, new shares to be allotted and issued by the Company
and/or convertible securities to be issued by the Company. The Board
considered that the proposed acquisition will bring in stable rental
revenue stream to the Group and the acquired properties will have a
higher appreciation potential.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Apart from the investment properties in Royal Mediterranean Hotel and
Nansha Yujing development project, the Group will continue to explore
quality properties with a view to expanding its land bank should suitable
opportunities arise.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover and Segmental Information
Rental income

The Group’s turnover represents rental income generated. Rental
income decreased by 28% to approximately HK$7.8 million in 2009
from approximately HK$10.8 million in 2008. The decrease in rental
income was mainly due to the disposal of the property investment in
Liwan Plaza in 2008.

Gross profit

Gross profit decreased by 34% to approximately HK$4.1 million in 2009
from approximately HK$6.2 million in 2008, mainly due to the fall in
rental income received.

Other income

Other income decreased by 50% to approximately HK$0.2 million in
2009 from approximately HK$0.4 million in 2008, mainly due to the
decrease in bank interest income received.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses decreased by 93% to approximately HK$1.5
million in 2009 from approximately HK$20.1 million in 2008, primarily
attributable to the fact that there were no impairment of goodwill and
no impairment of prepayments for acquisition of investment properties
during the year.

Profit/(Loss) before tax

The Group recorded a profit before tax of approximately HK$9.5 million
in 2009 whereas a loss before tax of approximately HK$22.6 million
was reported in 2008 mainly due to the increase in fair value on
investment properties and the gain on disposal of subsidiaries.

Income tax

Income tax increased by 57% to approximately HK$2.2 million in 2009
from approximately HK$1.4 million in 2008, primarily attributable to the
increase in deferred tax in 2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash position

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s bank and cash balances
amounted to approximately HK$108.9 million (2008: HK$0.18 million).

Borrowings, charges on group assets and gearing ratio

Apart from finance lease payable of approximately HK$28,000, the
Group had no other borrowings as at 31 December 2009 (2008: NIL)
and the gearing ratio as at 31 December 2009, expressed as total
borrowing over the total equity was NIL (2008: NIL).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities for the year ended
31 December 2009.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE

The Group conducts its business almost exclusively in Renminbi (“RMB”)
except that certain receipts of sales proceeds and the borrowings are
in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”). The conversion of RMB into HKD or other
foreign currencies has been based on the rates set by the People’s
Bank of China. The value of RMB against the HKD and other foreign
currencies may fluctuate and is affected by factors such as changes in
the PRC’s political and economic conditions. The Group has not
adopted any financial instruments for hedging purposes. However, the
Group will constantly assess the foreign exchange risk it encounters
S0 as to decide the hedging policy required against the possible foreign
exchange risk that may arise.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had approximately 40 employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC for the year ended 31 December 2009. They are remunerated
according to their respective job nature, market conditions, individual
performance and qualifications. Other staff benefits include year end
bonus.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the tax implications
of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to, the shares of the Company, they are advised to
consult an expert.
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PR RN RER

The Board currently comprises seven directors, four of whom are
executive directors and three of whom are independent non-executive
directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Liao Tengjia, aged 47, has been the Chairman and an executive director
of the Company since September 2009. Mr. Liao is a shareholder and
sole director of Rong De Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. He has over 10 years’ management experience in the
property development industry in the PRC.

Chu Hing Tsung (alias Zhu Qing Vi), aged 41, has been an executive
director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
September 2009. In February 2010, he was appointed the Deputy
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Chu has over 10 years’ extensive
experience in corporate management and property development in the
PRC. He is the younger brother of Mr. Chu Muk Chi, an executive
director of the Company.

Chu Muk Chi (alias Zhu La Yi), aged 53, has been an executive director
of the Company since September 2009. Mr. Chu is a shareholder of
Rong De Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Medicine from
Guangzhou College of Chinese Medicine. Mr. Chu has over 10 years’
extensive experience in corporate management, Chinese medicine and
property development in the PRC. He is the elder brother of Mr. Chu
Hing Tsung, the Deputy Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive director of the Company.

Huang Jia Jue, aged 40, has been an executive director and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since September 2009. Mr. Huang
obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration for Sun Yat-
Sen University in the PRC. He has over 10 years’ financial management
experience in the property development industry in the PRC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Leung Wo Ping Jr, aged 66, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since October 2009. Mr. Leung is a certified
public accountant with extensive experience in Hong Kong tax and
international tax planning for close to 30 years. Currently, he is an advisor
to Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited. Mr. Leung is a Fellow of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Leung is also an independent non-executive
director of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited, which is listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and a Councillor of the New Territories Heung Yee Kuk. He also serves
as members of various boards and committees, including the Hospital
Authority’s Hospital Governing Committee of Tai Po Hospital, United
Christian Nethersole Community Health Service Management
Committee and the Human Organ Transplant Board. He was a District
Advisor to the Hong Kong Branch of Xinhua News Agency before 1997.
He was also appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2000.

Zhang Jiangi, aged 53, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since October 2009. Dr. Zhang obtained a Doctorate
Degree in Management from Xi’an Jiaotong University of the PRC. He
was appointed as a professor and a tutor to doctoral candidates in
Sun Yat-Sen University in 2002 and 2003 respectively. Dr. Zhang is
also a member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is currently an
independent director of Guangdong Alpha Animation and Culture Co.
Ltd., which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Zhou Chunsheng, aged 44, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since October 2009. Dr. Zhou obtained a
Doctorate Degree in Finance and Economics from Princeton University
of the United States of America and a Master’s Degree in Fundamental
Mathematics from Peking University of the PRC. Dr. Zhou has been
employed as a professor in finance in Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business of the PRC. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Information Technology Development Limited, which
is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, an independent director of Centennial Brilliance
Science & Technology Co. Ltd., which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and an independent director of Dagin Railway Co. Ltd., which
is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various businesses and functions of the Company are respectively under
the direct responsibilities of the executive directors who are regarded
as senior management of the Company.

GROUP FINANCIAL CONTROLLER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Tang Sze Lok, aged 40, has been a company secretary of the company
with effect from April, 2007. He holds a Business Administration (Hons.)
degree in Accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University. He has
extensive experience in auditing, financial accounting, corporate finance
and specializes in corporate governance compliance in respect of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act 404 compliance as well as financial due diligence,
mergers and acquisitions. He is familiar with the statutory reporting
requirements, including the Companies Ordinance and Listing Rules in
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors and the International Financial Management Association. He
has membership of certain professional accountancy bodies and
functional groups, including the Institute of Accountants Exchange, the
Hong Kong Association of Women Accountants, the Young Practitioners
Interest Group and the Corporate Finance Interest Group of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was an Accountant
Ambassador for the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
in 2008. Currently, he is a member of the Information Systems Audit
and Control Association and serves the committee on professional
development aspects. He has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director and audit committee chairman of a Hong Kong listed
corporation.

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER

Liu Yi Jun, aged 31, has been the financial controller of the Company
since November 2009 overseeing the finance and accounting work of
the PRC group companies. Ms Liu graduated from Guangdong
University of Foreign Studies with Bachelor Degree in Financial
Management and now she is studying in Sun Yat-Sen University for in-
job Master of Professional Accountant. Ms Liu has over 5 years of
experience in auditing from a “Big Four” international accounting firm
and she has been involved in the audit of several large initial public
offerings exercises in A and H Shares market. She also has over 3
years of experience in financial management in well-established
enterprise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

We are committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. We firmly believe that a good, solid and sensible framework
of corporate governance will enhance the Company to run its business
in the best interest of its shareholders as a whole.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions (except code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.2) of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2009.

Under code provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Before 9 September 2009, the Company did not have a
chief executive officer and the role of chief executive officer was
performed by the chairman of the Board. On 9 September 2009, Mr.
Liao Tengjia was appointed as chairman of the Board whist Mr. Chu
Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi) was appointed as chief executive
officer of the Company. Thereafter, the different duties and roles of the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company
have been clearly defined. The chairman is responsible for providing
leadership in the Board to set policies and achieve the Group’s goals.
The chief executive officer is responsible for coordinating and managing
the Group’s business and operations, implementing the strategies laid
down by the Board. The management performs their duties in managing
the actual operations of businesses.

Under code provision A.4.2, every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. According to the
articles of association of the Company, the chairman of the Board of
the Company shall not be subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account in determining the number of Directors to retire. As
continuation is a key factor to the successful long term implementation
of business plans, the Board believes that the roles of the chairman
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow more
effective planning and execution of long-term business strategy. As
such, the Board is of the view that the chairman of the Board should
not be subject to retirement by rotation.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Group adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Special enquiry has been made of all Directors, and all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out
in the Code for the year ended 31 December 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive directors, namely,
Mr. Liao Tengjia, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Vi),
Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Mr. Zhu La Yi) and Mr. Huang Jia Jue; and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Leung Wo Ping uP,
Dr. Zhang Jiangi and Dr. Zhou Chunsheng.

For details of the directors’ biographical information, please refer to
the section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior Management”.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors to be independent.

The principal functions of the Board are to consider and approve the
strategies, financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals,
and assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Company. The day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to
the management of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board met eleven times in 2009 and the individual attendance of
each Board member in these meetings is as follows:

Note Attendance

Executive Directors

Mr. Liao Tengjia (i) 8/11
Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (i) 6/11
Mr. Chu Muk Chi (i) 4/11
Mr. Huang Jia Jue (i) 7/11

Mr. Tong Shi Jun (i) 1/11
Mr. Zhao Lishen (if) 1/11
Ms. Huang Ling (ii) 3/11
Ms. Zhu Jun (i) 3/11
Mr. Chiu Kong (v) 2/11
Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Wo Ping Jp (iif) 2/11
Dr. Zhang Jianqgi (i) 1/11
Dr. Zhou Chunsheng (iif) 1/11
Mr. Chen Song Sheng (iv) 2/11
Mr. Yuen Wai Ho (iv) 2/11
Mr. Chou Sing Hong (iv) 3/11

Notes:

(i) Appointed as executive director on 9 September 2009.

(i) Resigned as executive director on 29 September 2009.

(iif) Appointed as independent non-executive director on 28 October 2009.
(iv) Resigned as independent non-executive director on 28 October 2009.
(v) Resigned as executive director on 1 February 2010.

The Company has audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee with details presented below.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee in 1999 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Its current members
include three independent non-executive directors, who are
Mr. Leung Wo Ping Jp, Dr. Zhang Jiangi and Dr. Zhou Chunsheng.
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The audit committee is to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor and
any questions of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the external auditor; to meet with the
external auditor to discuss the nature and scope of the audit, and
matters of concern when requested to do so by the external auditor; to
review the interim financial report and annual financial statements before
they are submitted to the Board; to discuss problems and reservations
arising from the interim review and final audit; any other matters the
external auditor may wish to discuss, to review the external auditor’s
management letter and management’s response; and to consider any
findings of major investigations of internal control matters as delegated
by the Board on its own initiative and management’s response.

The audit committee met twice in 2009. Individual attendance of each
committee member is set out as below:

Note Attendance
Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP (i) 0/2
Dr. Zhang Jianqgi (i) 0/2
Dr. Zhou Chunsheng (i) 0/2
Mr. Chen Song Sheng (i) 2/2
Mr. Yuen Wai Ho (i) 2/2
Mr. Chou Sing Hong (i) 1/2

Notes:

(i) Appointed as audit committee member on 28 October 2009.

(i) Resigned as audit committee member on 28 October 2009.

To fulfil its responsibilities, the audit committee has met with the external
auditor to discuss the general scope of their audit work and has reviewed
the Group’s unaudited interim results for the period ended 30 June
2009 and annual audited results for the year ended 31 December 2009
and was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosure have been made.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee in September
2005 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. It comprises an executive director, Mr. Huang Jia Jue and two
independent non-executive directors, Dr. Zhang Jiangi and Dr. Zhou
Chunsheng.

The remuneration committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending remuneration policy to the Board and determining the
remuneration of directors and members of senior management in
accordance with their duties and market conditions, as well as reviewing
and making recommendations on the Group’s bonus structure,
provident fund and other compensation-related issues.

The remuneration committee met twice in 2009. Individual attendance
of each committee member is set out as below:

Note Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Huang Jia Jue (i) 0/2
Mr. Chiu Kong (if) 0/2
Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr. Zhang Jianqgi (i) 0/2
Dr. Zhou Chunsheng (i) 0/2
Mr. Yuen Wai Ho (if) 2/2
Mr. Chou Sing Hong (i) 2/2

Notes:

(i) Appointed as remuneration committee member on 28 October 2009.

(i) Resigned as remuneration committee member on 28 October 2009.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee in September 2005
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. It
comprises an executive director, Mr. Huang Jia Jue and two independent
non-executive directors, Dr. Zhou Chunsheng and Dr. Zhang Jiangi.

The nomination committee is responsible for formulating policy and
making recommendations to the Board on nomination, appointment of
directors and Board succession, develops selection procedures for
candidates, reviews the size, structure and composition of the Board
and assesses the independence of independent non-executive director.
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The nomination committee adopts certain criteria and procedures in
the nomination of new directors. The major criteria include the
candidates’ professional background especially their experience in the
industry of the Group’s business; their financial and past track record
with other similar companies; and the recommendations from the
management team and other knowledgeable individuals. The
nomination committee will shortlist the candidates and then submit to
the Board for final approval.

The nomination committee met twice in 2009. Individual attendance of
each committee member is set out below:

Note Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Huang Jia Jue (i) 0/2
Mr. Chiu Kong (if) 0/2
Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr. Zhou Chunsheng (i) 0/2
Mr. Leung Wo Ping urP (i) 0/2
Mr. Yuen Wai Ho (if) 2/2
Mr. Chou Sing Hong (if) 2/2

Notes:

(i) Appointed as remuneration committee member on 28 October 2009.

(i) Resigned as remuneration committee member on 28 October 2009.

During the meeting, the nomination committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board, considered the suitability
of the appointment of a non-executive director, assessed whether the
independence of independent non-executive directors comply with the
relevant requirements under the Listing Rules, and the suitability of the
re-election of the directors who are subject to retirement and re-election
at the annual general meeting.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interest. The Board conducts regular review of the Group’s internal
control system.

The system includes a well-established organizational structure with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority, which is designed
to safeguard assets from inappropriate use, maintain proper accounts
and ensure compliance with regulations. Executive management is
directly responsible for implementing the strategy and policies adopted
by the Board, and for all the Group’s activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board monitored the Group’s progress on corporate governance
practices throughout the year under review. Periodic meetings were
held, and circulars or guidance notes were issued to directors and senior
management where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate
governance practice.

The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal controls by considering
reviews performed by the audit committee, executive management and
external auditor. The Board believes that the present internal control
system is adequate and effective.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, RSM
Nelson Wheeler, is set out as follows:

Financial assets

o 3R

REBEFER  EESUASEEER
RATERYFTHETER  RA@BRTH
EELEREEABELBENES - ER

HEHHSRECEERER2EEN -

EXRB2THEREZES  TREEAR
Ko SNESAZ SR A 2 2 B T A BR BE A% 2 RUB 1F i
HE - EFEMRERB 2AMERRRTES R
B o

A b P 2

FR - XN TFARRBARBEODREE (58 &
R R AT S E T

Fee paid/payable

EREE e ENEA
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services Eit iR 800
Other services (Note) HAb AR (B 5E) 120
920

Note: Included in the above other service fee is an amount of approximately
HK$58,000 (representing the cost attributable to issue of new ordinary
shares) debited to the Company’s share premium account.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009, which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor on the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
31 to 32.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To foster effective communications, the Company shall provide extensive
information in its annual report, interim report and announcements and
also disseminates information relating the Company and its business
to the public in time through its website.

et A EEMREERBETRETTERZE
%5 #)58,000/ 7T © BERARQ B 5%
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
A A

The directors herein submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group by principal activities is
set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the year (2008: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 87.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
the state of affairs of the Group are set out in the financial statements
on pages 33 to 86 respectively.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year is set out in the
financial statements on page 36.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

At 31 December 2009, the Company had no reserves (2008: Nil)
available for distribution to shareholders.

DONATIONS

No donations were made to charities by the Group during the year
(2008: Nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year is set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements. Particulars of investment
properties of the Group are set out on page 88.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Movements in properties under development of the Group during the
year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements. Particulars of
properties under development of the Group are set out on page 88.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Apart from finance lease payable of approximately HK$28,000, the
Group had no borrowings as at 31 December 2009.

No borrowing cost was capitalized in respect of property development
projects during the year (2008: Nil).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the disposal of subsidiaries are set out in notes 28 to the
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the balance sheet date are set out in note 33
to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
A A

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information of turnover and purchases attributable to the major

customers and suppliers of the Group for the year is as follows:

Turnover HE

The largest customer SPNEYS

Five largest customers in aggregate TR AT 4258
Purchases g

The largest supplier AR
Five largest suppliers in aggregate ~ T A fER 4258

None of the directors and their associates or any shareholder (who to
the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had interest in the above customers and
suppliers at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Liao Tengjia (Appointed on 9 September 2009)
Chu Hing Tsung (Appointed on 9 September 2009)
Chu Muk Chi (Appointed on 9 September 2009)
Huang Jia Jue (Appointed on 9 September 2009)
Tong Shi Jun (Resigned on 29 September 2009)
Zhao Lishen (Resigned on 29 September 2009)
Huang Ling (Resigned on 29 September 2009)
Zhu Jun (Resigned on 29 September 2009)
Chiu Kong (Resigned on 1 February 2010)

Leung Wo Ping up *
Zhang Jiangi *
Zhou Chunsheng *
Chen Song Sheng *
Yuen Wai Ho *
Chou Sing Hong *

(Appointed on 28 October 2009)
(Appointed on 28 October 2009)
(Appointed on 28 October 2009)
(Resigned on 28 October 2009)
(Resigned on 28 October 2009)
(Resigned on 28 October 2009)

* Independent non-executive director

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, Mr. Chu Muk Chi, Mr. Huang Jia Jue, Mr. Leung
Wo Ping up, Dr. Zhang Jiangi and Dr. Zhou Chunsheng will retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
Bye-Laws No.86 of the Company and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2009, save as disclosed in the section headed
“Substantial Shareholders” in this directors’ report, none of the directors
and chief executive of the Company had, under Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, nor were they taken to or deemed to have
under such provisions of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, any
interests in the shares of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance)
or any interests which are required to be entered into the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance or any interests which are required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material interest
subsisted, either directly or indirectly at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2009, none of the directors or the managing
shareholders or any of their respective associates of the Company had
an interest in a business that competed or might compete with the
business of the Group directly or indirectly.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
A A

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS F BB

As at 31 December 2009, according to the register of interests kept by NZZBENFTA=+—H  REXRRIZ
the Company under section 336 of Securities and Futures Ordinance, BHHE NI EIEPIEICIETE 2R T EMET
and so far as was known to the directors or chief executive of the TRBESHARAITBHRRETAN - AL
Company, the following persons had an interest or short position in the R AR D BB ZBEIRIE 5 R E &0
shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the EXVEFE2RIDEMEN AR R EE 2w
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the FORE -

Securities and Futures Ordinance:

Approximate
percentage

or attributable
percentage of

shareholdings

R

Name of shareholder Nature of interest BHAEDHE

RN & B HERME RELREDT L

(%)

(Note 3)

(P =X 3)

Rong De Investments Limited 1 Beneficial owner 1,302,600,000 (L) 57.41%
AMIEREBRAA EnEAA

(“Rong De”)

Mr. Chu Muk Chi 2 Interest of a controlled 1,302,600,000 (L) 57.41%

KARZ 54 corporation

EIRHEE 2 s

Mr. Liao Tengjia 2 Interest of a controlled 1,302,600,000 (L) 57.41%
BREELE corporation

RERDEAE Z Em

(L) Long position
(L) #f &
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Notes:

(1) 1,302,600,000 Shares have been pledged by Rong De to Shoreline
Investment 1 Limited, which are deemed to have interest in the capacity
of person having security interest in the 1,302,600,000 Shares by virtue
of the SFO. Shoreline Investment 1 Limited is wholly owned by Shoreline
China Value |, L.P., and thus Shoreline China Value I, L.P. is also deemed
to be interested in the 1,302,600,000 Shares under the SFO.

2) Rong De is legally and beneficially owned as to 40% by Mr. Chu Muk
Chi and as to 60% by Mr. Liao Tengjia. Mr. Chu and Mr. Liao are deemed
to be interests in the 1,302,600,000 Shares beneficially owned by Rong
De under the SFO.

(3) For the purpose of this section, the shareholding percentage in the
Company is calculated on the basis of 2,268,820,000 Shares in issue.

Save as disclosed above, so far as are known to the directors, the
Company has not been notified of any interest in the issued share capital
of the Company required to be recorded under section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance as at 31 December 2009.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 2 July 2009, Rong De entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with two substantial shareholders of the Company, pursuant to which
Rong De conditionally agreed to acquire from the said shareholders an
aggregate of 665,280,000 shares of the Company for an aggregate
consideration of HK$66,528,000 (the “Share Sale”). At the same time,
the Company and Rong De entered into a subscription agreement
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue
to Rong De 636,820,000 new shares of the Company for an aggregate
subscription price of HK$63,682,000 (the “Share Subscription”). Since
the completion of the Share Sale was conditional upon the completion
of the Share Subscription, Rong De was deemed to be a connected
person under the Listing Rules for the purpose of the Share
Subscription. Hence, the Share Subscription constituted a connected
transaction of the Company. The Share Sale and the Share Subscription
were both completed on 4 September 2009.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions that need to
be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
A A

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws or the law in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2009.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

A management discussion and analysis of the Group’s annual results
is shown on pages 6 to 13.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
A corporate governance report is shown on pages 17 to 23.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company comprises three independent
non-executive directors. The committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group and discussed with the
management regarding auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including the review of the Company’s audited results for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained the amount of public float as required under
the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

A resolution for re-appointment of RSM Nelson Wheeler as auditor of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By Order of the Board
Liao Tengjia
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 April 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RSM Nelson Wheeler
PIEE(EB)SEHMEREM

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS NAM FONG INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhuguang
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 86,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2009, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

¥ 31 % S bt o8

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of
the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 April 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Ao WA o

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

2009 2008
—EEhF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T T
Turnover =F £ 7 7,761 10,849
Rental outgoings M= W (3,654) (4,619)
Gross profit EF 4,107 6,230
Other income H A A 8 199 383
Fair value gains/(losses) on WEWMEZATFE
investment properties Iazs,/ (E518) 17 11,915 (328)
Administrative expenses 1TEE M (12,586) (15,411)
Other operating expenses Hhas &k 10 (1,468) (20,129)
Profit/(Loss) from operations reERA, (B8R) 2,167 (29,255)
Share of profits of jointly controlled  F&1f £ [&1322 I & 88 ~ % 7l
entities - 16,255
Loss on disposal of jointly controlled & £ E 42 & & 42 ~ 518
entities - (603)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries/ TEWB QA
(Loss on disposal of a subsidiary) (HE—FHRBARER) 28 7,330 (8,969)
Profit/(Loss) before tax BREBATDER, (B58) 9,497 (22,572)
Income tax Frig % 11 (2,235) (1,424)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FEERR S (BHE) 12 7,262 (23,996)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREXZRER  (&HiE) 15 0.39 cents 1l (1.47) cents Il

TR P B AR AT A
ZRBIAFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B 2 T A R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

2009 2008

—EENE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET AT

Profit/(Loss) for the year KEEEF (BR) 7,262 (23,996)
Other comprehensive income H 2 W =

Exchange differences on translating & /&N ERHBME L 2

foreign operations I =5
Exchange differences arising RNEEEEZ
during the year bE 5 =& 463 5,042
Reclassification adjustments REE A EBINETE
relating to foreign operations i 2 &£ 2 EJH
disposed of during the year DT (5,451) —
(4,988) 5,042
Share of exchange differences on ME G HEFIZERIE S
translating foreign operations of INERMEEZE K EZR
jointly controlled entities
Share of other comprehensive EEAREELRZERZE 2
income of jointly controlled Hi2EKam
entities during the year - 9,755
Reclassification adjustments NEFRE S LR E
relating to jointly controlled MELEZENDIEAE
entities disposed of during
the year - (16,047)
- (6,292)
Other comprehensive income REREAFEEMEEKE
for the year, net of tax (4,988) (1,250)
Total comprehensive income AEELXEHRZEHE
for the year 2,274 (25,246)

3 4 | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B2 W5 IR DL

At 31 December 2009 R=ZZEZhE+-_A=+—H

2009 2008
—2BhE —TENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BEREE 16 673 63
Investment properties "REYE 17 150,733 136,300
Properties under development ERPYE 18 109,731 75,379
Prepayment for properties acquisition U &% & ¥ 2 78 1~ z 18 19 15,000 58,163
276,137 269,905
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JiE M B X 20 148 2,905
Consideration receivables FE U AB K 21 144,316 151,041
Deposit for renovation, electrical and #I1#F TIE M E X5 2
mechanical systems by i - 41,303
Prepayments, deposits and FENRE ek
other receivables H fth & W Fk 8 13,322 499
Bank and cash balances RITRIR e R 22 108,931 179
266,717 195,927
Current liabilities nBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET & A I H b FE R 5E 18,561 9,077
Current tax liabilities BTHATRIE & (& 1,392 573
Finance lease payable & E TR 23 6 —
19,959 9,650
Net current assets REBEEFE 246,758 186,277
Total assets less current liabilities A& E R KB A& 522,895 456,182
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Finance lease payable BMERERMTR 23 22 =
Deferred tax liabilities BT IE & E 24 5,526 4,101
5,548 4,101
NET ASSETS BEERE 517,347 452,081
Capital and reserves ERXR#E
Share capital % 7R 25 226,882 163,200
Reserves ] 27 290,465 288,881
TOTAL EQUITY 48 R 25 517,347 452,081
Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2010. R-ZE—ZFNA -+ HERESSHE -
Liao Tengjia Chu Hing Tsung
BhE REM
Director Director
=% o
TRJe ¥ B4R M A LA A
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. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Aok W 22 5 ) ¢

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

Reserves
"
Reserve on Exchange
Share Share merger  fluctuation Accumulated
capital premium  accounting reserve losses Total

S ROBE AHEARE NEXDREE RitESR HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx TEx

(Note 27(c)(i)  (Note 27(c)(ii) (Note 27(c)(ii)
(MEE27(0)0)  (MEE27())  (BE27(c)iii)

At 1 January 2008 RZZE\F—A—-AH 163,200 906,000 (101,922) 6,407 (496,358) 477,327

Total comprehensive income and changes FEERERRAE

in equity for the year Lz 28 - - - (1,250) (23,996) (25,246)
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2000 ~ R-ZEN\F+-A=1+—H

k2T NE-A—H 163,200 906,000 (101,922) 5,157 (520,354) 452,081

Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZERREE - - - (4,988) 7,262 2,274

Issue of shares (note 25(b)) Bk (F15E25(0) 63,682 (690) - - - 62,992

Changes in equity for the year AEERRZE 63,682 (690) - (4,988) 7,262 65,266

At 31 December 2009 R-ZEBAF+-A=+-8 226882 905310 (101,922) 169 (513,002 517,347

3 6 | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i BLATR AR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

2009 2008
—EEAE —TENE

HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TAET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REKE=%(i 2

ACTIVITIES ReRE
Profit/(Loss) before tax BB, (BE) 9,497 (22,572)
Adjustments for: EFAETIFIE :
Interest income B A (3) (383)
Impairment of goodwill EESNERE - 4,520
Impairment of prepayments for I % & W) 2 2 TR 538
acquisition of investment properties A - 13,546
Other receivables written off L {th 1 UK 5K T8 Al 5H - 540
Deposit paid written off ¥ & s 488 =
Depreciation e 79 16
(Gain on disposal of subsidiaries)/ (HERBRAAWKE)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHTE AR EE 28 (7,330) 8,969
Share of profits of jointly controlled &1k F£ [F]32 i & 42
entities ikl - (16,255)
Loss on disposal of investments in ~ H &R L FE 5 E 52
jointly controlled entities KREEE - 603
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BMERRLKEZ
plant and equipment Iz (7) —
Fair value (gains)/losses on BEWEZ AFE W)/
investment properties &5 18 (11,915) 328
Operating loss before working Rt EEESEHR 2
capital changes %%%E‘Eﬂ,a (9,191) (10,688)
Increase in properties under BERPYE
development o (114,676) (33,032)
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts FEMWBR TR L
receivable (38 1n) 2,757 (1,825)
Increase in prepayments, FEANRE 7]
deposits and other receivables R LA ORRIE 42 N (4,939) (3,209)
Increase in accruals and other payables  FE&TE i I H fh & {5 38 A0 1,122 10,835
Net cash used in operating activities &L & /EEFTFEIR & /558 (124,927) (37,919)

TR JBe A B A5 IR 44 v
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

2009 2008
—EZhF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING XEHREZEE 2
ACTIVITIES HEeERE
Interest received B U F 8 3 383
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BEK
equipment B (698) (36)
Consideration received B W R(E 117,773 66,073
Additions of investment properties  AERE W - (31,864)
Disposal of subsidiaries/a subsidiary HEHBEAR,—HEHKEAR 28 27,885 968
Disposal of jointly controlled entities & £ [F4% # & 52 - 105,381
Prepayments for properties acquisition U &% & ¥) 2 T8 15 318 (15,000) (69,118)
Refund/(Payment) of deposit for T2
renovation, electrical and RMERFIEES 2
mechanical systems RBE () 40,815 (41,308)
Net cash generated from investing & /& FFT15
activities e F5E 170,778 30,484
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ¥ E@EE8 >
ACTIVITIES HERE
Repayment of finance lease payable 1,%? SR E M E RN (2 =
Proceeds from issue of shares LS PN 62,992 —
Net cash generated from financing B & /& EFT15
activities R FHEE 62,990 =
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN R&KRESZEEHR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  FE#i (Rd) 108,841 (7,435)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [E R & &)z & (89) 5,428
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—HBHzZH£K
AT 1 JANUARY REEEER 179 2,186
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W+=HA=+—Hx2
AT 31 DECEMBER ReRELEEER 108,931 179
ANALYSIS OF CASHAND CASH HE&RBRLSZEEB 22
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 108,931 179

3 8 | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2009



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUA B ik o B ik

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its principal
place of business is Room 5709, 57th Floor, The Center,
99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, at 31 December
2009, Rong De Investments Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, is the immediate and ultimate parent
and Mr. Liao Tengijia is the ultimate controlling party of the
Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties which are carried at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their
judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group decided to change the functional
currency of a subsidiary from Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) to
Renminbi (“RMB”) as RMB has become the currency that mainly
influences the operation of that subsidiary. The change in
functional currency of the subsidiary has been accounted for
prospectively since 1 January 2009.

— B &R
ARRAR—HRBRETIMEALIZE
PRA A o Hafft 9 FE i &
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° Z&"’A &) 2
FELEEMBMNBEERARNEFI
SRARIRAFLSTIEST09E o A AR 2K
NEBEHERXHMER A ([HBEZ
FTl) ERET -

ARFA—HMBRERBAR HTEB
B2 ] 2 E B R A B R
534 -

R -BFAFT-_A=1T—8 "  FR&
AEERA  BMEREARARA  —
BREBRE LSRN ZRE » B
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FTERRBIERA -

i LS 5 e 2 B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$Uh 5 Tk o5 B ik

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to its operations and effective
for its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2009. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”);
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKAS”); and Interpretations.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs had no material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior years, and did not result in any significant
changes in the accounting policies of the Group. Nevertheless,
certain changes in presentation and disclosure have been
adopted by the Group in compliance with the following new and
revised HKFRSs:

(a) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”
affects certain disclosures and presentation of the
financial statements. The balance sheet is renamed as
the statement of financial position and the cash flow
statement is renamed as the statement of cash flows. All
income and expenses arising from transactions with non-
owners are presented in the income statement and
statement of comprehensive income, and the total carried
to the statement of changes in equity. The owner changes
in equity are presented in the statement of changes in
equity. HKAS 1 (Revised) also requires disclosures of the
reclassification adjustments and tax effects relating to
each component of other comprehensive income for the
year. HKAS 1 (Revised) has been applied retrospectively.

4 O | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUA B ik o B ik

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance. Previously, HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”
required an entity to identify two sets of segments
(business and geographical), using a risks and rewards

approach, with the entity’s “system of internal financial

|u

reporting to key management personnel” serving as the
starting point for the identification of such segments. The
Group has determined that its primary segments reported
under HKAS 14 are the same as the segments reported
under HKFRS 8. HKFRS 8 has been applied

retrospectively.

The segment accounting policies under HKFRS 8 are
stated in note 9 to the financial statements.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced considering the potential impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of operations
and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$Uh 5 Tk o5 B ik

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these financial statements are set out below.

(a)

42 |

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. Control is the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents
the difference between the proceeds of the sale and the
Group’s share of its carrying amount together with any
goodwill relating to the subsidiary and also any related
accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$Uh 5 Tk o5 B ik

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

44 |

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the

exchange rates on the transaction dates);

and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate.

ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUA B ik o B ik

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. FEEGFHEOR @

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(©)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Office equipment,
20% - 33%
15% - 20%

furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct
costs attributable to the property.

(©)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

46 |

Investment properties (continued)

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of the investment property are recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leases

(i)

(ii)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement
of the lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at
the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments,
each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of
the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to a produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(®)

(g)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Costs include acquisition
costs, prepaid land lease payments, construction costs,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs
attributable to such properties. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to sale proceeds received after
the reporting period less selling expenses, or by estimates
based on prevailing market condition. On completion,
the properties are reclassified to properties held for sale
at the then carrying amount. Properties under development
which are expected to be completed within one year from
the end of the reporting period, are classified as current
assets.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

(@)
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Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market and are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment
of accounts and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the
difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition. The amount of the allowance is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

G

(k)

@

(m)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group

and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)
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Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits
as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a
detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(0)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(0)

(p)
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A party is related to the Group if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with, the Group; has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or has joint control over
the Group;

(if) the party is an associate;
(iif) the party is a joint venture;

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or its parent;

(V) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(Vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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LEGFBOR @

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()]

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets except investment
properties and financial assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when
material.
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5. FORCAIE R R Alu

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

Legal titles of investment properties

As stated in note 17(b) to the financial statements, the
title documents of the Group’s investment properties with
carrying value of approximately HK$150,733,000 (2008:
HK$136,300,000), acquired through acquisition of 100%
equity interests in Graceful Link Limited (“Graceful Link”)
in 2007, have not been obtained by the Group at
31 December 2009. Graceful Link is in the process of
applying for the title documents of these properties.
Nevertheless, based on the legal opinion obtained, the
directors are of the opinion that Graceful Link is the
beneficial owner of these properties. In addition, Graceful
Link is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy or use these
properties and should be able to obtain the title
documents subject to all necessary approvals from the
relevant authorities of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Estimated income taxes (including land
appreciation tax in the PRC)

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in
the PRC. Significant estimates are required in
determining the amount of the provision for tax
and the timing of payment of the related tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the investment
properties. In determining the fair values, the
valuer has utilised a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates. The directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

Properties under development

The directors review the net realisable value of
properties under development at the end of each
reporting period and make estimates in determining
the net realisable value with reference to open
market value basis of the development project.
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5. TEKAI B R 3 BN

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(iv)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of receivables
based on assessment of the recoverability of the
accounts and other receivables (such as accounts
receivables, consideration receivables and other
receivable) including the current creditworthiness,
the past collection history, the length of overdue
period and collateral (if any) of each debtor or
counterparty. Impairment arises where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification
of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual result
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
accounts and other receivables and impairment
of receivables in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b) MFAWIMEEZE
TR @)

(iv)

W ok B B il M A
oK Z WA

& B Ty R B W
R AR ER R E A
J& W R IR 2 (5t AT e 2]
BE  BERSEBAX
HFHEKEE  BH®
WK - R EE
EREMRG(WE) - &
TE FEMCGRIRRIE © i
RS ESEA
ZEHHEHRESELY
BB o FEUWGRIARE Z
B Rl B B B K fh
it e MWERGERERE
Bt AT - BHEES
FERWER - BEK
B & E A YRR 2
EEEREBETEE
8 F E 2 B WRIRR
B

6. &MITH
(a) BT HAM

HK$’000
TERT

2009
—EENF

2008
—EENF
HK$’000
Tt

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including & 5k & & I 5B
bank and cash balances) (BRBITRRSEHR)
Financial liabilities =i
Amortised cost B SHAK AR

266,717 195,926
18,561 9,077
TR e 4 1 A7 B2 w)

SRR
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

58 |

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and

interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial

markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group’s financial performance.

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. As a result of
the Group’s significant operations in the PRC and
Hong Kong, the Group’s statement of financial
position can be affected significantly by
movements in RMB with respect to HK$ exchange
rate. The Group has not adopted any financial
instruments for hedging purposes. However, the
Group will constantly assess the foreign exchange
risk it encounters so as to decide the hedging
policy required against the possible foreign
exchange risk that may arise.

The Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to foreign currency risk arising from
recognised monetary assets or liabilities is as
follows:

6.

LR T H

(b)

S5 L g A B

$%l2%ﬁ&7¥k§é Eﬁﬁ*ﬂ

A

BENERR
2 mBEEZER
c REEERERREEER

==
I:/\

&ﬂ$ﬂ

EXSHE RIS 2 M ATRR

M

W = KA AR BB R IR

BEMNZERERE -

(i)

Assets

BE

2009

=F t P
HK$’000
FE T

RMB ARE

2008
—EEN\F
HK$'000
TR

111,946

—EBNF

4k 1 B

SNERRIE SR T EE
BEREINEE RSB
HIREE) 2 @k - AR
RNEBRE D FEBAM
REBFHE  RAEHE
FBRAREEARE
HABTEREEmZ
BEAFE  c NEBEWE
KA eI EEY
WAE o AT - AEE
15 5 48 BTy EL TE R 2 SN
EERK  LWEAERES
0 BR AN ] R KSR R Al
BEE A 2 HNE R B o

AREBERNEE B mEERK
HERRBZEKEER
BEZINERBRIT

Liabilities
=L
2009 2008
—EENEF
HK$’000

THTT

HK$’000
FERT

11,352 3,082
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At 31 December 2009, if HK$ had weakened
10 per cent against RMB with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$1,135,000 lower (2008: consolidated loss
after tax would have been approximately
HK$10,886,000 lower). If HK$ had strengthened
10 per cent against RMB with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been approximately
HK$1,135,000 higher (2008: consolidated loss
after tax would have been approximately
HK$10,886,000 higher).

Credit risk

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s concentration
of credit risk by geographical location is in the
PRC which accounted for 100% of the total
accounts receivable (2008: 100% in the PRC). The
Group also had concentration of credit risk by
tenants as 100% of its total accounts receivable
were due from three tenants at 31 December 2009
(2008: 100% of its total accounts receivable were
due from three tenants). The Group requests rental
deposit from each tenant upon entering into
tenancy agreement. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

6.

(b)

TR JBe A B A5 IR 44 v

3o %5 R B 4% B ()

(i)

(ii)

blid ) 4G
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BRE10% @+ mATE E
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FEEA R DL
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B R AR EF
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

60 |

Financial risk management (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

In addition to credit risk on accounts receivable,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk through its consideration receivables
of approximately HK$144,316,000 (2008:
HK$151,041,000) and other receivables of
approximately HK$12,751,000 (2008: Nil).
However, the directors consider that the credit risk
is limited. With respect to the consideration
receivables, collateral over the balances are held
by the Group. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
In relation to the other receivables, the directors
have regular liaison with the counterparty to
identify any early sign of potential problems.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables set out the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables are drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and
the earliest dates on which the Group can be
required to pay.

ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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6.

£ T H @
%5 R B 4 B ()

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

1 £ B (#8)

BRIEWBR R 2 2 E R R
Hh - AEEEERZEER
B INER R R ENR (B FRAY
144,316,000/ 7T (ZZEZ
N\ : 151,041,000/57T)
R OH fib I R A
12,751,000 7L (Z 5=
NG 4E) - hifn - EEF
RAEERBRAR © FE
WRERME - ¥FH3k
RERME RIT 2 EE
& IARKE TR AR
RS ARG o AHERNE
bR - EEE E AR
HTHE - DRI S
EFDEJ%E"JHF% ©

L ) %5 £ B
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. WL H @
(b) Financial risk management (continued) (b) 0 5 W s 4 BE ()
(iii)  Liquidity risk (continued) (iii) B E £ B ()

Between Between

Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
DPR—F —EmE “EHE k]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TAT FHT FETT FATT

At 31 December 2009 R-ZZEZNEF
+=ZA=+-—-H

Accruals and other payables T EfH &

H il e 5008 18,561 - - 18,561
Finance lease payable MEME
JE 3R 6 6 16 28
18,567 6 16 18,589
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZENF
+=A=+-—"H
Accruals and other payables [fE=T & 3 &
H i J& < 5RE 9,077 - — 9,077
(iv)  Interest rate risk (iv) A5 B
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is ﬁ’i BrREREHNE
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rate ERELEBASE
arising from the Group’s bank balances at floating Z/%@J FIERITHE R 2
interest rates. The directors review the Group’s FEFH - EESFH
cash flow interest rate risk exposure regularly and BEAEBZBERE
do not consider the present interest rate risk to @ f - 977 ﬁ'ﬁﬁ
be significant. B IR & 2 F R &
TEK °
(¢c) Fair values (c) AV
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the BEERE  REEMBMRAR
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the ARBMzeRERSRAGEZ
consolidated statement of financial position approximate REEEE 2 ATFERE
their respective fair values.
Thoe e B AL A B A )
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7. TURNOVER 7.

The Group’s turnover represents rental income generated during

BEMW

AEBEZEXRBRFRELZHETI

the year. A e
8. OTHER INCOME 8. AW A
2008
—EThE —TE)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT TATT
Interest income PSRN 3 383
Exchange gain PE 5 Uk 189 —
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE  BEK
plant and equipment 2 W 7 —
199 383
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. ¥R

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

Property sales property development and sales

Property rental property investment and property
rental activities

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include corporate income and expenses.
Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets
but do not include corporate assets which are managed on a
central basis. Segment liabilities include accruals and other
payables, current and deferred tax liabilities managed directly
by the segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments is
presented below. Amounts reported for the prior year have been
restated to conform to the requirements of HKFRS 8.
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Zias 3¢ 20

CLES Tigi TE ) ARy
B2 ORI T

0. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 0.

Information about reportable segment profit or
loss, assets and liabilities
Property Property
rental Total
MERE ko
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET BT

sales

MEHE

HK$’000
TR

Year ended 31 December 2009

BE-_ZZhF

tZA=t—-HLEE

Revenue from external customers HHNE B Uz - 7,761 7,761
Segment profit 7 &6 A 4,700 13,752 18,452
Other information H it &8
Interest revenue FEHA 3 - 3
Depreciation E 13 - 13
Fair value gains on investment REWMELZ
properties N EM - 11,915 11,915
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries i E B A 7S 5,880 1,450 7,330
Income tax IR - 2,235 2,235
Deposit paid written off Ze M - 488 488
At 31 December 2009 R=ZEZNEF
+=A=t-H
Segment assets DB E 293,383 246,197 539,580
Segment liabilities k= =N 11,511 11,417 22,928
PRk ¥ I 4 B A5 B A )
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9. MFEHR @

0. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about reportable segment profit or
loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2008

Revenue from external customers
Segment profit/(loss)
Other information

Interest revenue

Depreciation

Fair value losses on investment properties

Loss on disposal of jointly controlled
entities

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Share of profits of jointly controlled entities
Income tax

Impairment of goodwiill

Impairment of prepayments for
acquisition of investment properties

Other receivables written off
Additions to segment non-current assets

At 31 December 2008

Segment assets

Segment liabilities

BE_TTN\HF
A=

foR=t-ALEE
e
SR/ (B18)
18R

FIRKA

&
BAE Y ATEER

HEAREHNERZER

HE—RMBRRER
M HREZHER 2 E

e

WBEREMELZ
AN FRRE

H o JE YR IE M 3
DEFEREEE ZIE M

RZET)N\F
+=—A=+—8

okr

BEE

)

nERE

CLES Tigi TE ) ARy

EAFZERWT @

Property

sales

MEHE

HK$’000
TAET

10,041

383

12

603

16,255

4,520

36

184,646

1,643

Property
rental
MEHRE
HK$'000
TR

10,849

(19,781)

328

8,969

1,424

13,546

540

280,672

9,846

Total
B
HK$’000
FAT

10,849

(9,740)

383
12

328

603
8,969
16,255
1,424

4,520

13,646
540

36

465,318

11,389
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 0.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Zias 3¢ 20

BB - B - B
e e £ 4 2 ik

2009 2008
—EThE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Profit or loss EE
Total profit or loss of reportable segments £ k% 20 2 & &5 4258 18,452 (9,740)
Unallocated amounts RO & HE

Other corporate expenses HhdERX (11,190) (14,256)
Consolidated profit/(loss) for the year REZHRERN (BE) 7,262 (23,996)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments ERHEZBREE 539,580 465,318
Unallocated amounts KOO & &

Other corporate assets EMrEEE 3,274 514
Consolidated total assets MEBEE 542,854 465,832
Liabilities =L
Total liabilities of reportable segments  E2®RO M2 A A G 22,928 11,389
Unallocated amounts RO & FE

Other corporate liabilities HMPEEE 2,579 2,362
Consolidated total liabilities REBBE 25,507 13,751
Geographical information b b % R

All the revenue generated by the Group for the two years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008 were attributable to customers
based in the PRC. In addition, majority of the Group’s non-current
assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical
analysis is presented.

Revenue from major customers

During the year, revenues derived from the Group’s largest 3
customers (2008: 4) which accounted for 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$3,622,000, HK$2,716,000 and HK$ 1,423,000 respectively
(2008: HK$3,202,000, HK$2,566,000, HK$2,204,000 and
HK$1,888,000 respectively). These revenues are attributable to
the property rental segment.

AEBRE-_FENER-_FEN\F
A=+ BIREEE TS K
SPRETATES - FE - AEE
ZARBHIERDEELEEHE - A
ML — S REAEE Y HESD
17 o

KHERE P Z R

RAFE  ZARF (ZEZENEF
) i A B AU ZE10% A £ - 25l
493,622,000 7T ~ 2,716,000/ 7t &
1,423,000 L (ZFEZENF : DAl A
3,202,000/ 7T * 2,566,000/ JT °
2,204,000/ 7t & 1,888,000/ 7T) °
ZEREHREMEREDF -

TR P B AR AT A
ZRBIAFER
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10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 10. b 2848 BH 3%

2009 2008

—EZhF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Deposit paid written off B o MiE 488 —

Other taxes HAn B8 980 1,523

Impairment of goodwill EESNEAED - 4,520
Impairment of prepayments for ndiee3o8= 87 vd

acquisition of investment properties TEN R IERE - 13,546

Other receivables written off L fth, 8 5K T8 i 2 - 540

1,468 20,129

11. INCOME TAX

11. Wif38e

2009 2008
—EEhF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T T
Current tax BVEA7 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REIREEDH 817 1,114
Deferred tax (note 24) FEIEFIE (M 5E24)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR TS A
Current year KEE 1,418 110
Effect of change in effective tax rate B LB 2 2 - 200
1,418 310
2,235 1,424

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for both years.

Subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax at 25% (2008: 25%) based on existing
legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

6 6 | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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P38

RIBPECERMASEHERPEBEM

For the year ended 31 December 2009 & =

11. INCOME TAX (continued) 11.

According to the PRC enterprise income tax law and the relevant

PRC issued implementation regulation, the Group is subject to

PRC withholding income tax of 10% on the gross rental income

(2008: 10%).

The reconciliation between the income tax and the product of

profit/(loss) before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is

as follows:

BT A
BE 7 10% (Z BT )\F
R TEFI TSR ©

AEBERESRA

10%) B4 49

P15 B ERBR B A& K1l (B518) SR LA

A EFE 2 HERMAT

2009
—g2ENE

HK$’000
FiERT

2008
—EENF
HK$’'000
TAET

Profit/(Loss) before tax BR&E A= R, (E5HR) 9,497 (22,572)
Tax at the applicable rates in the REERAERERARE

jurisdictions concerned FEZIE 113 (5,206)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable — HZE R WA 2 T 75 57 £ (1,211) (2,682)
Tax effect of expenses that are IR v

not deductible M E 2,486 5,550
Tax losses not recognised RIER 2T E1E 280 175
Tax effect of temporary differences RERZEREZREZ

not recognised Mgz 567 3,387
Effect of change in effective tax rate BRMEES) 2 2 - 200
Income tax TS %t 2,235 1,424

Thoe e B AL A B A )
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12. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 12. ARAERERA O 1)
The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is stated after charging the AEBZAFE RN, (BB EMNk
following: AT&IE :
2009 2008
—EZThE —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Auditor’s remuneration % BRAT B &
— Audit — &t 800 700
— Others — Eftp 62 170
862 870
Deposit paid written off B o Mis 488 —
Depreciation e 79 16
Direct operating expenses of investment FEAHE S WA 2
properties that did not generate rental R &EWE 2
income HEEERX - 379
Direct operating expenses of investment EEF S U A 21 E W3
properties that generated rental income 2 BE# & @ 3,654 4,240
Exchange loss b 5 E1E - 4,056
Operating lease rental in respect of land T ith MIEF 2 & &
and buildings HEMRE 2,140 2,594
Other receivables written off LA JE UK 5K TE A 5H - 540
Staff costs including directors’ BT A
emoluments (BIEEEME)
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ e MoERL 5,093 5,028
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRE R B 5K
contributions 125 118
5,218 5,146

6 8 | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. HHFRREEZME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of each director are as follows: ZESEMeLT -

BEE_2ENF+-RA=1t—-HLHF

Year ended 31 December 2009

E

Retirement

Salaries benefit

and scheme
Name of director allowances contributions Total

BIRER
EEpg e HepEH B R30 ko]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
THRT THET TERL TERT
Liao Tengjia (Note (a)) B E (3t () - 93 - 93
Chu Hing Tsung (Note (a)) REM (M3 (@) - 93 - 93
Chu Muk Chi (Note (a)) KAz (FiEE(a) - 93 - 93
Huang Jia Jue (Note (a)) EEAGETR) - 93 - 93
Tong Shi Jun (Note (b)) it 35 (P (o) - 455 - 455
Zhao Lishen (Note (b)) 7 E (FTEE (o) - - - -
Chiu Kong (Note (g)) it 8 (55 (e)) - 300 12 312
Huang Ling (Note (b)) 5% (M) - - - -
Zhu Jun (Note (b)) KE (M) - - - -
Leung Wo Ping JP (Note (c)) AN R4+ (3 () 32 - - 32
Zhang Jiangi (Note (c)) R (e (c) 32 - - 32
Zhou Chun Sheng (Note (c)) A% £ (M) 32 - - 32
Chen Song Sheng (Note (d)) BROER (MT3Ed) 4 - - 41
Yuen Wai Ho (Note (d)) BriE & (KiEE(d) 66 - - 66
Chou Sing Hong (Note (d)) B R (B &E(d) 4 - - 41
Total 4z 244 1,127 12 1,383
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 13. w3 RiE B2 & @
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2008 BE-_ZZN\F+-HA=+—HLHF
E
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and scheme
Name of director Fees allowances  contributions Total
BIREF
YR e  FekER FEIfR B
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHL FHL
Tong Shi Jun ([Sus2] — 240 — 240
Zhao Lishen Iz E - 420 - 420
Chiu Kong it 8 - 280 12 292
Huang Ling B5R — 240 - 240
Zhu Jun RE - 240 - 240
Chen Song Sheng BRIERE 50 - - 50
Yuen Wai Ho frE= 80 - - 80
Zhou Mei Zhen (Note (f)) IEEIACIEL) — = = =
Chou Sing Hong (Note (g)) [ A% BE (Fft 3 (g) 8 - - 8
Total 1B 138 1,420 12 1,570
Notes: BosE -
(a) Appointed on 9 September 2009 (a) REZZETNFNLANBEZE
(b) Resigned on 29 September 2009 (b) RZZEZNAhFALA-—TNAFE
() Appointed on 28 October 2009 () RZZZNFETRAZ+N\BEZEE
(d) Resigned on 28 October 2009 (d) REZEThAFT+AZ+/N\BFHE
(e) Resigned on 1 February 2010 (e) R_E—EF_A—HFHEH
) Resigned on 1 November 2008 6] RZEZTENF+—A—HBFE#
@) Appointed on 1 November 2008 @) RZZBZNE+ A —BEZE

7 0 | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 2 (2008: 3) directors whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the
remaining 3 (2008: 2) individuals are set out below:

13.

HREERZME @

FALTBEEELREXRERES
A2z 4k -

FR - AREzRUGREHFALHA2
L (Z2TN\F ) REF  KFFZ
e RAEDHT IS - HER3M
(CEZENF ) EEFALTZHE
LI

2009 2008

—EBhE —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT TAT

Salaries and allowances e MOERL 1,445 1,012
Retirement benefit scheme RIREF

contributions T2 K 33 24

1,478 1,036

The emoluments fell within the following band:

e /A TEMALTZ ABIT

Number of individuals

A

2009 2008

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007% 7T

—RENEF —2ENF

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

FAAEEYEREIANESEFHES
FALNME  (EAMAREES
MAREER 2 BT - HERBEBAE

f& -

TR P B AR AT A
ZRBIAFER

71




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$Uh 5 Tk o5 B ik

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

14. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2008: nil) in respect of the year.

15. BASIC EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based on
the profit for the year of approximately HK$7,262,000 (2008:
loss for the year of approximately HK$23,996,000) divided by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,839,620,767
(2008: 1,632,000,000) in issue during the year.

There were no dilutive potential shares during the years ended
31 December 2009 and 2008. Therefore, no diluted earnings/
(loss) per share have been presented.

7 2 | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

16. W3 ~ Wb Kt fi

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
equipment,
furniture and \" (e} (o] ¢
fixtures vehicles Total
ERRRES RE W
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT TAT
Cost RE
At 1 January 2008 R—EENEFE—H—H 339 2,663 3,002
Exchange differences PE 5 =& 2 — 2
Additions NE 36 — 36
At 31 December 2008 and R-ZZEENFE
1 January 2009 +—A=+—H8Xk

—EENF—H—H 377 2,663 3,040
Additions NE 737 — 737
Disposals & (276) - (276)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE A A (70) - (70)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF

+=—A=+—8H 768 2,663 3,431
Accumulated depreciation A2t E
At 1 January 2008 N_EENF—H—H 298 2,663 2,961
Charge for the year REEFE 16 — 16
At 31 December 2008 and RZZEZENF

1 January 2009 +ZA=+—HK

—ZEENF—H—H 314 2,663 2,977
Charge for the year ARERFE 79 - 79
Disposals k= (274) — (274)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR (24) — (24)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+=ZA=+—8 95 2,663 2,758
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2009 R-BZEAF+=A=+—8H 673 - 673
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF+=-A=+—H 63 — 63

R-ZZEENF+-_A=1+—8, A&H
NEERAOFEZHAEEE  HE
HEA A37,0008 L (ZEENF
£7) o

At 31 December 2009, the carrying amount of office equipment
held by the Group under finance lease amounted to approximately
HK$37,000 (2008: Nil).

TR P B AR AT A
ZRBIAFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 & =

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—EENEFETZA=T—RIEEE

BEEYE

2009 2008

—ZEZThEF ZEENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

At 1 January Hn—HA—H 136,300 181,622
Exchange difference bE 5 =& 354 —
Additions NE - 32,633
Transfer from prepayments (note 19) B I8 R R (i 7E19) 58,163 —
Fair value gains/(losses) A EYWE S (BE) 11,915 (328)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 28) HEKE A A (B:E28) (55,999) (77,627)
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 150,733 136,300
(a) At 31 December 2009, all the Group’s investment @ RZEZAF+_A=+—

74 |

properties, situated in Guangzhou, PRC, are held under
medium-term leases.

All of the Group’s investment properties held under
operating lease for rental purposes are measured using
the fair value model. The fair value of the Group’s
investment properties at 31 December 2009 was based
on the open market value basis, by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties, by
Greater China Appraisal Limited. Greater China Appraisal
Limited is an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group with substantial experience
in valuation of properties.

The Group’s investment properties with total carrying
amount of approximately HK$150,733,000 (2008:
HK$136,300,000) were acquired through the acquisition
of 100% equity interests in Graceful Link in 2007.
Pursuant to certain properties presale agreements duly
registered and notarised at the Properties Exchange of
the Guangzhou City, these properties were acquired by
Graceful Link. Graceful Link is in the process of applying
for the title documents of these properties. Based on the
legal opinion obtained, the directors are of the opinion
that Graceful Link is the beneficial owner of these
properties and should be able to obtain the title
documents pending all necessary approvals from the
relevant PRC authorities.

ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. #EW¥

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s total future minimum lease RZZEZNEFE+ZA=+—0H ' K&
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable B AR 15 T A R S A = TR A FE U 2 AR 2R

as follows: ERENRARENT
2009 2008
—sEhE —2EN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT T T
Within one year —FR 1,021 8,163
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFRF (BREEERTE) - 1,021
1,021 9,184

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. ¥R PhE

2009 2008

—EEhF ZTENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

At 1 January R—H—H 75,379 7,696

Exchange differences bE 5 =& 146 2,967

Additions NE 114,676 33,032

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 28) KT B A A (F5E28) (80,470) —
Transfer from deposit for acquisition BUE T A2

of land use rights RoER - 10,684

Transfer from removal and BiFBELEME

relocation costs BRER - 21,000

At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 109,731 75,379

At 31 December 2009, the properties under development were RZZEZNF+_A=1T—H  #E

located in Nansha District, Guangzhou City, PRC. A certificate FYEMRTEEMNMRELR - A%

of land use rights was granted whereby the Group has the land EMGHEELILERAES T8

use rights over the properties for a term of 70 years for residential BEHOMREETE BEAECHE

use, 40 years for commercial use and 50 years for others WEAMN+F - MEMARZHEL A

commencing from 22 December 1997. ABETF(EBE-NMNLtEFE+ZA=+=

H#EET) ©
Thoe e B AL A B A )
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

PREPAYMENT FOR PROPERTIES
ACQUISITION

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group paid
HK$15,000,000 to a prospective vendor with the intention of
acquiring certain floors and units of The Royal Mediterranean
Hotel, located at 518 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
City, PRC. On 22 January 2010, a memorandum of understanding
was entered. It was agreed that the Group and the prospective
vendor would use their best endeavour to negotiate and to enter
into a binding agreement for the proposed acquisition on or
before 22 July 2010.

The prepayments paid for acquisition of certain investment
properties located in Meizhou City, Guangdong Province, PRC
in the prior year were transferred to investment properties in the
current year (note 17).

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Group’s accounts receivable, representing rental receivable
from tenants, are due on presentation of invoices.

The aging analysis of accounts receivable, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

19.

20.

W N B 5 3 T A K

RZBEAE+-_A=+—0 K&
B Tk 722 o UK B R A AR B M T RO [
50 B 51855 B B ) 1 o g B B B /i B
D128 K B i &% 2= 2 115,000,000
BELT—REBER - Bt RZT—
TE—RAZ+ BT —REE
Ttk c AEBREBEFHBERASE
HFRR=FE—ZEF+HA=-+=H
REZUWESHEII L EREE B o

REFRBUNRPREREE/MNTE
THREVEMSZ M ZENZEERE
NER G EYZE FiE17) o

JE Wi K

AREEZ ERIIRR FEREBEP 2B
M) RETERRIE -

U B 5 0 5 25 B SR HE 2 BR R AT
mF :

2009 2008

—EENF —EENEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FETT

Within 3 months ={EB A 148 2,043
4 to 6 months Mz <@ A - 862
148 2,905

As of 31 December 2009, the above accounts receivable were
past due but not impaired. All the balances were subsequently
settled. The Group holds a rental deposit as collateral from each
tenant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

21. MEWCRE K

CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(@)

Included in the consideration receivables is an amount
of approximately HK$32,316,000 due from the purchaser
derived from the disposal of the Group’s subsidiary, Nam
Fong Liwan Plaza Limited (“NF Liwan”), in 2008. This
consideration receivable is secured by all issued shares
of NF Liwan. In addition, original title documents of certain
properties of NF Liwan were in the Group’s custody.

This consideration receivable was past due by 14 months
up to 31 December 2009. In April 2010, it was fully
settled.

Included in the consideration receivables are amounts of
HK$64,000,000 and HK$48,000,000 arising from the
disposal of the Group’s subsidiaries, Boshing Investments
Limited (“Boshing Investments”) and Brilliant Champion
Development Limited (“Brilliant Champion”) respectively.
Details of which are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

These consideration receivables will be due on 30 June
2010 and are secured by the issued share of Boshing
Investments and Birilliant Champion respectively.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

At 31 December 2009, the bank and cash balances of the Group

denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$38,817,000 (2008: HK$92,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange

Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and

Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

(@)

EURRERBER-_ZZENF
ALEAEENBARIBEA
EBESHERAR (EMAHE])
MELEZEWREHFRELY
32,316,000/ 7T © ZFEUR(E
AR A 2B EITRG
TEHIR o boh - EE AR EE T
W 2 FERE X IEANE B I
REERE °

ZEREREXRBE_ZTTN
F+-A=+—HIEBH+
mMER - R-—T—FFMAL

2HEE -

ERREREEALEREE
MBEARIEAREBRA A
(BFKE]) RB®EERER
~al ([TBE]) 2 WA ERK
I8 + 9 5l#964,000,000/%8 7t &
48,000,000/ 7T © BRI H
T B 75 S 5% P 528

ZERBRERDBINAEFRE
BRB% 2B BITRMIE
BT R —_T—TF A=
THEE -

22. 847 BB &4 bR

RZBEEAE+ZA=+—H K&
EUARBZ 2RITRIBESEHKL
438,817,000 T (ZEFN\F :
92,000/7T) ° AR HIRINE /B E
A B2 KON B IR AR BI) R (A5 E - BEE
MANEEERHETE) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

23. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE 23. R R HE AT Ak

Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BREEENR REAENRRE
2009 2008 2009 2008

—EBAE —TT/\5 —BBAE —TTN\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tz  FAT  FEx TR

Within one year —F A 6 — 6 —
In the second to fifth years, EFE_EERF

inclusive (BEEEME) 22 - 22 —

28 — 28 —

Less: Future finance charges W AR E R - — N/ATEAR NATEA

Present value of lease obligations & #&IEIRE 28 - 28 —

Less: Amount due for settlement & : A+ 1@ AR

within 12 months (shown FIHAEE
under current liabilities) A (B 1E
MENEE) (6) —
Amount due for settlement R+ =@ A%
after 12 months B E MR 22 —

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its office equipment L‘A%ﬂiﬁ?‘ﬁ%?‘ﬁ% jF#)J# NEEEAE
under finance lease. At 31 December 2009, the lease term is 5 ERBE  RZZTENF+=A="
years. At the end of the lease term, the Group has the option to = %ﬁfﬁﬁ fRA& 5F - WHEI& R
purchase the office equipment at a nominal price. B AEEEREEARMMEERE

BZ ST -

The Group’s finance lease payable is secured by the lessor’s AEBZREHE RN KB LA LA
title to the leased asset. ANHEBENFBEERERM °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24. WEWEBLI A
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by REAEERBAFE - AEEFTHER
the Group, and the movements thereon, during the current and ZEZREFEBBEREZIHNAT o
prior year.

2009 2008
—BBhE —EEN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000
TRERT TAET

Revaluation of investment properties WEMEER

At 1 January KR—HA—H (4,101) (3,791)
Exchange difference bE 3 =& (7) —
Charge to the consolidated income REFZRIRE W TR
statement for the year (1,418) (110)
Effect of change in effective tax rate BERREED) 2 2 - (200)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H (5,526) (4,101)
At 31 December 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of RZZBEZENF+_A=+—H ' &&
approximately HK$240,000 (2008: HK$1,355,000) available for BARBABIEEEA240,000% 7T
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been (ZZFZ/)\4F : 1,855,000/ 7T) AT A
recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability HEH AR A Al o R R A& it 2 T
of future profit streams. Included in the above unused tax losses AITEAIME - MU B %S B EERE
of approximately HK$240,000 (2008: HK$1,355,000) will expire ERRIBEE o EalREAMRIBEIEF
after five years from the year of assessment they relate to. #240,000B8 T (ZEZENEF :
1,355,000/ 7T) MABREAR T F E e F
FIEFE -
At 31 December 2009, the Group had no other deductible RZZEZNF+_A=+—H &
temporary differences (2008: HK$13,668,000). B EA R ERERE (T \F

13,668,000/ 7T) ©

TR P B AR AT A
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

25. JBEAR

Number of shares

25. SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital

% & &N
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEAF ZITTN\E ZEBEEAF ZITI)NE
’000 ‘000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
T T FTHER FHET
Authorised: EERA :
Ordinary shares of HEREE0.10E T
HK$0.10 each ZE B (@ 4,000,000 2,000,000 400,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBZRKA :
Ordinary shares of FREEO0.10/8 T
HK$0.10 each 2 B AR
At 1 January n—H—H 1,632,000 1,632,000 163,200 163,200
Issue of shares BTN (b) 636,820 — 63,682 —
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 2,268,820 1,632,000 226,882 163,200

Notes: Bt 5 -

(a) By an ordinary resolution passed on 24 August 2009, the (a) RZZTTAFENAZ+MHAE - g
authorised ordinary share capital of the Company was increased ApalE@dREERES (AR
from HK$200,000,000 to HK$400,000,000 by the creation of 200,000,0007% 75 1 Z=400,000,000
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each, such new shares T, % EEIME IN2,000,000,000
ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the R EIREE0.10B T2 ’kin 2 L il
Company. RERCEBRA - MBEZEHNET

T AR B AN N B B B B BT A
EMEFEAZER SR -
(b) On 2 July 2009, the Company and Rong De Investments Limited (b) RZZEZNFEAZH ARRHA

entered into a subscription agreement in respect of the
subscription of 636,820,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each at a price of HK$0.10 per share. The subscription was
completed on 4 September 2009 and the transaction costs
attributable to issue of new ordinary shares of approximately
HK$690,000 was debited to the Company’s share premium
account.

Capital management

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital

structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder

returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements

of the Group, prevailing and projected profitability and projected

operating cash flows. The directors regard total equity as capital,

for capital management purposes.

8 0 | ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  26. A2 w] Z M # R0 #*

OF THE COMPANY
2009 2008
—EENEF —EZ)NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y - B N 579 —
Investments in subsidiaries NI £ 546,487 58,266
Deposits paid EANEHKE 484 —
Bank balances RITAE R 2,111 83
Accruals and other payables FEET & A K E fb S 58 (1,396) (1,616)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHFY B A RIFRIA (30,617) (29,413)
NET ASSETS EEFE 517,648 27,320
Share capital % 72X 226,882 163,200
Reserves Gk 290,766 (135,880)
TOTAL EQUITY R 517,648 27,320
27. RESERVES 27. Al

(a) Group (a) M

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements rEEzFEecEREEFHE

therein are presented in the consolidated statement of HIRERE W &k MR &

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of mEEEK o

changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

27. RESERVES (continued) 27. filif o
(b) Company (b) ARAH
Share  Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
AR E N 2 ER ok
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTAT FAT TAL FTAT
At 1 January 2008 R-_EZENFE—HF—H 906,000 477,805 (1,517,124) (133,319)
Loss for the year AERER - - (2,561) 2,561)
At 31 December 2008 and R-ZEENE+-A=+—H
at 1 January 2009 k=TT NE—F—H 906,000 477,805 (1,519,685) (135,880)
Transaction costs attributable to ~ EEEF L BB EERFHER
issue of shares (note 25(b)) (B 5E 25(b)) (690) — — (690)
Profit for the year AEZ A - - 427,336 427,336
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZEAFE+=A=+—-H 905310 477,805 (1,092,349) 290,766

(©)

82 |

The contributed surplus of the Company arose when the
Company issued shares in exchange for the shares of
companies being acquired, and represented the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued and the value of the shares acquired. The
application of the contributed surplus is governed by the
Bermuda Companies Act.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising from
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their
par value per share. The application of the share
premium account is governed by the Bermuda
Companies Act.

Reserve on merger accounting

The reserve on merger accounting was set up
upon the share swap for the Company to acquire
its subsidiaries.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(b)
to the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 30 December 2009 and 31 December 2009, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interests in Boshing Investments

and Brilliant Champion respectively (2008: the Group disposed

of its entire equity interests in NF Liwan).

28. HEHEA
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2009 2008
—EENF —ZET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET T
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of: HEZE,/(ARF)FE :
Property, plant and equipment Y - B N 46 —
Investment properties "EYFE 55,999 77,627
Properties under development EERPYE 80,470 —
Prepayments, deposits and TARTFRIA ~ 7] & KA fib fE R IE
other receivables 3,475 2,951
Bank and cash balances IR1T R IR B AR 9 15
Accruals and other payables FEET & A K E fb S 38 (1,984) (10,316)
Amounts due to the Group FERT AN &R B 5/ I8 (127,000) (112,740)
Current tax liabilities BVEARR I8 &’ - (1,658)
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of HEBE(8E) FE 11,015 (44,121)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve SN i B % 15 & 3R (5,451) —
5,564 (44,121)
Assignment of debts B 127,000 112,740
Direct costs of disposal HE 2 EEKAR 106 350
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries/ HEWB AR,
(Loss on disposal of a subsidiary) (HE—RHKBARIEE) 7,330 (8,969)
140,000 60,000
Satisfied by: IATRE A -
Cash consideration received BUIE SR E 28,000 18,000
Consideration receivable FEMARERK 112,000 42,000
Total consideration BARE 140,000 60,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRESRAERE :
Cash consideration received net of BUWR R EREZEKAN
direct costs 27,894 17,650
Land premium and compensation BEARAEEHETHE K
settled by the purchaser on behalf ffE
of the Group - (16,667)
Bank and cash balances disposed of HERITRIR G A% 9) (15)
27,885 968
TRJe ¥ B4R M A LA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

29. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@)

During the year, the Group acquired HK$39,000 of
equipment under a finance lease (2008: Nil).

29. ERIFEBERY

@ FA- RNEBELARE

739,000/ 8 T ARG (CEE

SEHERNE

AJ>

NE : 8|) -

(o)  During the year, the deposit paid for acquisition of b) FR- W WEEEWEZENK
investment properties of approximately HK$58,163,000 IH#)58,163,000 B TER =%
in the prior year was capitalised to investment properties. SERNEFEEREREME -

(c)  During the year, repayment of accruals and other ()  FA r #1,006,0007 T fE T &
payables of approximately HK$1,006,000 was satisfied FA R Bt & < 3R I8 B {E FE IR AR
by part of the consideration receivables. BIRPEE o

(d) During the year, the Group acquired a receivable of (d) FRN - AEEUABERSEESE
approximately HK$11,352,000 at a consideration of same FE U X #4911,352,000/8 7T © fE
amount. The consideration was settled subsequent to HK{EME)‘E"?* HHRBEHE
the reporting period and was included in accruals and B -RZIZEZNFTA=+
other payables at 31 December 2009. —A8 - J?%Tﬁﬁfﬁ KEFIEREST

BERREMENRIERN -
30. LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. HARIE

R-ZEAE+-A=+—8 - RE
A BEEETL B R 2 RIE
BOREREMT

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable

as follows:

2009 2008

—EENF —EE)N\EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T T

Within one year —FUAR 1,106 854

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EENF (BEERERS) 1,752 —

2,858 854

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the LEHORERASEGRES THA
Group for certain of its offices. EREN2HES °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZE — T T NF+_A=+—HIEFE

OTHER COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2009, the future minimum property
management payments committed by the Group in respect of a

property management service arrangement are as follows:

31.
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33.

2009 2008

—EEhEF —ET)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT T

Within one year —F LA 608 3,650
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZFERF (RREEEMST) - 608
608 4,258

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following transactions and balances with its
related parties:

(a) Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel of the Group comprises
all directors, details of their emoluments were disclosed
in note 13 to the financial statements.

(b) Balances with related parties

Included in accruals and other payables are amounts in
total of approximately HK$169,000 (2008: HK$254,000)
representing accrued directors’ emoluments due to the
Company’s directors. The accrued directors’ emoluments
are unsecured, interest-free and are settled in cash.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 22 January 2010, the Group entered into two memoranda
of understanding with two prospective vendors with the intention
of acquiring certain floors and units of The Royal Mediterranean
Hotel, located at 518 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou
City, PRC, details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 January 2010. It was agreed that the
Group and the prospective vendors would use their best
endeavour to negotiate and to enter into a binding agreement
for the proposed acquisition on or before 22 July 2010.

32.

33.
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(a) TBEFHABRFHM

FEETEZEBABBREME
B FUNSFMZABR
BT AR M 13 EE -

(b) BBt A - 45

B BRAREMEMNKIERE
H#169,0008 L (ZZEZE N
F : 254,000/ 7T) 2 KIB B IE
HFARRESZRITESH
Mo EErEEH M AEER -
REBRABREIM -

e o ) 4% 0

RZE—ZFTF—A=-+_-H ~5H
LR WAL A FR B E M T RO [ R
] B 51855 B9 B M 3 AR VS B BR B & 3615
BEREMNEZ @ ERMEEERG
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #HEZ —ZTTNF+_A=+—HIEFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

34.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2009

are as follows:

Name of
subsidiary

WEAREE

Place of
incorporation or
registration/
operations

MR
BRI

Issued and
paid up capital

ERTRAZRAE

Nam Fong International Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$10,000
HAEREEERAH Hong Kong 3% 10,000 T
RERTEE/EF
Zhuguang Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
BAEBERRAA Hong Kong LBRIET
RERUEE /&R
Zhuguang Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1
GAEE (BE)BERAA BE EERIET
Guangzhou City Runfa Property PRC RMB10,000,000
Company Limited #* F AR #10,000,00075
BEMNTEERHERRAR *
Graceful Link Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$2
BEERLDE BE/HE EERkoET
Stand-up Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
HEREERAR BB Ei@ik10,0008 T
# Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under the PRC

law.

*

For identification purposes only.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2010.
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R_FBAFE+-A=+—BTEH
BARZEENT :

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting power

Principal
activities

FERER REEAIL
Direct Indirect

BE k3

FERH

100% = Investment holding

REEKR

100% — Investment holding

RERK

= 100% Investment holding

REER

= 100% Property

development

S

= 100% Property investment

NERE

= 100% Holding of

motor vehicles

A=

# R BUEREMK L Z I B E

AR -
C EgER

PRI XRBREIEFEAKEERS
BESBRBZMBARIZFHE - EF
R RHEGBHNERARFIEEER
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AP Y B BE

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the TREANESENBEREFEZHE - EE
last five years is as follows: REafs :

Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=1t—-HLEE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

—BRAE  ZFT/\F  ZTTEHF  ZETRF ZTTIF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FHT
RESULTS E
Turnover BEH 7,761 10,849 12,254 23,406 45,551
Profit/(Loss) before tax BRI ANEF, (B8B) 9,497 (22,572) 8,778 66,664 (164,923)
Income tax FTiS i (2,235) (1,424) 1,117) (6,596) 493,450
Profit/(Loss) for the year ~ AEEEFI/ (E518) 7,262 (23,996) 7,661 60,068 328,527

As at 31 December
R+=B=+-—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

ZEEAE T N\EF —TT+F —TEREFE —ITTHHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET TET FET FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

Total assets SERE 542,854 465,832 495,128 645,653 823,745

Total liabilities aERE (25,507) (13,751) (17,801) (213,556) (495,387)

Net assets EEFE 517,347 452,081 477,327 432,097 328,358
TR e 4 M A5 B A )
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
PISEBER

Attributable
beneficial interest

Investment properties to the Group Floor area™ Lease term
REW* FEEELEREE BEERETAEXK HEFH
1. Levels 40, 41, 42,43 and 45 100% 6,098 H Medium lease

Royal Mediterranean Hotel i REIHE

No. 518 Tianhe Road
Tianhe District
Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

The PRC

J& M 3 HR g B B OB I

5840 41 42 - A3RA4A5[E
hEERE

&M T KA [

ROl B55185%

Attributable Estimated

Properties under beneficial interest date of
development to the Group Floor area™ completion
9=k ES AEEELERER BEEETALXK a3 R B 58
2. Zhuguang Nansha Yujing 100% 119,066 R/C/CP End of 2011

No. 1 Jinzhou Main Street (E Pt 20114 X

Nansha District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

The PRC

Kt e AR

hEERE

BT ELE
SHAEIH

R-Residential C-Commercial CP-Car park H-Hotel
t—1FE B—ExE F—12E5 B — B IE
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ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
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(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
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